
 

AGENDA 

 
 



1 

 

 
CITY OF HOPEWELL 

Hopewell, Virginia 23860 

CITY COUNCIL 
Jasmine E. Gore, Mayor, Ward #4 

Patience Bennett, Vice Mayor, Ward #7 
Debbie Randolph, Councilor, Ward #1 
Arlene Holloway, Councilor, Ward #2 

John B. Partin, Jr., Councilor, Ward #3 
Janice Denton, Councilor, Ward #5 

Brenda S. Pelham, Councilor, Ward #6 
 

John M. Altman, Jr., City Manager 
Stefan M. Calos, City Attorney 

Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk 

AGENDA 

(804) 541-2249 

www.hopewellva.gov 

info@hopewellva.gov 

rarrington@hopewellva.gov 

 June 11, 2019 COUNCIL CHAMBERS  
300 N MAIN STREET 

HOPEWELL, VA 23860 

Closed Meeting:  5:30 PM 
Work Session: 6:30 PM 

Regular Meeting: 7:30 PM 

 

OPEN MEETING 

5:30 p.m.        Call to order, roll call, and welcome to visitors 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  To go into closed meeting for (1) discussion of performance of city 

council employees (city attorney, city manager, city clerk); (2) discussion, consideration, and 

interview of specific appointees of city council (boards, committees, commissions); (3) discussion of 

the disposition of real property for a public purpose, Twhere discussion in an open meeting would 

adversely affect the bargaining position or negotiating strategy of the public body (HRHA); (3) 

consultation with legal counsel and briefings by staff members or consultants pertaining to actual 

or probable litigation, where such consultation or briefing in open meeting would adversely affect 

the negotiating or litigating posture of city council (police); and (4) consultation with legal counsel 

employed or retained by city council related thereto and regarding specific legal matters requiring 

the provision of legal advice by such counsel, in accordance with Virginia Code § 2.2-3711 (A) (1) 

[two items], (3), (7), and (8), respectively. 

  

Roll Call 

CLOSED MEETING 

 

RECONVENE OPEN MEETING 

 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO VIRGINIA CODE  § 2.2-3712 (D): Were only public business 

matters (1) lawfully exempted from open-meeting requirements and (2) identified in the closed-

meeting motion discussed in closed meeting? 

 

Roll Call 

  

 SUGGESTED MOTION:    To amend/adopt work session agenda 

 

Roll Call 

  

1

mailto:info@hopewellva.gov
mailto:rarrington@hopewellva.gov


2 

 

 

6:30 p.m.                                               WORK SESSION 

 

WS-1 Conditional Use Permit – 130 Mercer Lane 

WS-2 Conditional Use Permit – operate a duplex in R-2 district 

WS-3 Tri-Cities Multimodal Train Station 

 

Roll Call 

REGULAR MEETING 

 

7:30 p.m.        Call to order, roll call, and welcome to visitors 

 

Prayer by Rev. Leroy Mashore of John Randolph Pastoral Care, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to 

the Flag of the United States of America led by Councilor Holloway. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:    To amend/adopt regular meeting agenda 

Roll Call 

Consent Agenda 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by Council and will be approved or 

received by one motion in the form listed. Items may be removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion 

under the regular agenda at the request of any Councilor. 

  

C-1 Minutes:  May 20, and May 22, 2019 

C-2 Pending List:   

C-3 Routine Approval of Work Sessions: 6-25-19: Spot Blight and Community Development Block 

Grant 

C-4 Personnel Change Report & Financial Report:  Attached 

C-5 Ordinances on Second & Final Reading:   

C-6 Routine Grant Approval:  

C-7 Public Hearing Announcement: 6-25-19: HRHA, two Conditional Use Permits, rezoning request; 

7-9-19: Community Development Block Grant 

C-8 Information for Council Review: Minutes: Planning Commission (12-6-2018, 01-10-2019, 3-7-

19); Board of Zoning Appeal (May 15, 2019);  Appomattox Regional Library System (5-21-19); 

Electoral Board (3-6-19, 4-10-19, 5-6-19); and Order appointing Board of Equalization members 

C-9 Resolutions/Proclamations/Presentations: FOLAR presentation 

C-10 Additional Announcements:  

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:    To amend/adopt consent agenda 
 

Public Hearings 
CITY CLERK: All persons addressing Council shall approach the microphone, give name and, if they 

reside in Hopewell, their ward number, and limit comments to five minutes. No person shall be permitted 

to address the Council a second time until all others have been heard, and no one may speak more than 

twice on any subject in any one meeting. All remarks shall be addressed to the Council as a body, any 

questions must be asked through the mayor only, and there shall be no discussion without permission of 

the mayor. Any person who makes personal, impertinent, abusive, or slanderous statements, or incites 

disorderly conduct in Council Chambers may be barred by the mayor from further audience before 

Council and removed, subject to appeal to a majority of Council. (See Rules 405 and 406) 

2



3 

 

 PH-1 School Board Vacancies 

ISSUE:  Pursuant to Va. Code § 22.1-29.1 (public hearing before appointment of school board 

members), a public hearing is required to receive public comments regarding the nominees for 

appointment to the School Board prior to Council making the appointment.  There are two 

positions which will expire June 30, 2019, and which will need to be filled. The applicants for 

these positions are: Cadeidre Alexander, Christopher Reber, Anthony Sylvester, Anthony 

Zevgolis, Johnathan Branch, Susan Temple, John Griffin, Jr., Duran Williams, and Lee 

Bujakowski. 

MOTION:            

 

             

 Roll Call 

 

Unfinished Business 

None 

 

Communications from Citizens 

 

CITY CLERK: A Communications from Citizens period, limited in total time to 30 minutes, is part of 

the Order of Business at each regular Council meeting. All persons addressing Council shall approach 

the microphone, give name and, if they reside in Hopewell, their ward number, and limit comments 

to three minutes. No one is permitted to speak on any item scheduled for consideration on the regular 

agenda of the meeting. All remarks shall be addressed to the Council as a body, any questions must be 

asked through the mayor only, and there shall be no discussion without permission of the mayor. Any 

person who makes personal, impertinent, abusive, or slanderous statements, or incites disorderly conduct 

in Council Chambers, may be barred by the mayor from further audience before Council and removed, 

subject to appeal to a majority of Council. (See Rules 405 and 406.) 

  

Regular Business 

 Reports of City Manager: 
  

R-1 CDBG Reappropriation 

 ISSUE:  The United Stated Department of Housing and Community Development (HUD) 

Richmond Field Office has concluded that funding for two capacity building activities are 

ineligible and that repayment is required. 

MOTION:            

 

             

 Roll Call 

 

R-2 FY2019-2020 City Budget Resolution Amendment 

 

 ISSUE:   City Council requested amended language to the budget resolution 

 

MOTION:            

 

             

3



4 

 

 Roll Call 

 

 

R-3 Request to Appropriate Capital Improvement Funds and Receipt of Grant for King’s Court 

Park 

 

ISSUE:   The Hopewell Recreation and Parks Department was notified on Monday, June 

3, 2019, that it had received a $30,000 grant, provided by the National Recreation and 

Park Association and Disney, in support of the King’s Court Park renovation project. The 

grant requires a 1:1 ratio in matching funds. To complete the renovation project as 

designed, $50,000 is required in capital funding.   

MOTION:            

 

             

 Roll Call 

 

R-4 Tri-Cities Multimodal Train Station 

 

ISSUE:   Endorsement for Multimodal train station. 

MOTION:            

 

             

 Roll Call 

 

Reports of City Attorney: 
 

Reports of City Clerk: 
 

Reports of City Council:  
 

Committees: 
  

Individual Councilors 
  

IR-1 Gore - Request that boards, commissions, committees of council report annually to Council. 

 

MOTION:            

 

             

 Roll Call 

 

IR-2 Gore - Local historic marker program 

 

MOTION:            

 

             

 Roll Call 

4



5 

 

 

 

Citizen/Councilor Requests 
  

Presentations form Boards and Commissions 

Other Council Communications 
  

Adjournment 
  

5



 

CLOSED 
MEETING 

 



 
Work  

Session 
 

 



 

WS-1 
 



 

 

 
SUMMARY: 

Y N       Y N  

□ □ Councilor Debbie Randolph, Ward #1    □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 

□ □ Councilor John B. Partin, Ward #3    □ □ Vice Mayor Patience Bennett, Ward #7 

□ □ Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

 

       

  

 

CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

 

 

Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 

Culture & Recreation  

Economic Development 

Education 

Housing 

Safe & Healthy Environment  

None (Does not apply) 

 

Order of Business: 

Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing          

Presentation-Boards/Commissions  

Unfinished Business            

Citizen/Councilor Request      

Regular Business 

Reports of Council Committees  
 

 

Action: 

Approve and File  

Take Appropriate Action  

Receive & File (no motion required) 

Approve Ordinance 1
st
 Reading 

Approve Ordinance 2
nd

 Reading 

 Set a Public Hearing       

Approve on Emergency Measure  

 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:    Work Session to discuss a request for a 

Conditional Use Permit to construct a cell tower at 130 Mercer Lane  

ISSUE:  The City has received a request to construct a 195 foot monopole cell tower, with a 

four (4) foot lighting rod at 130 Mercer Lane.   

RECOMMENDATION:  Hold a work session to discuss the application and set a public 

hearing.  

TIMING: The work session is scheduled for June 11, 2019.  Staff is requesting the public 

hearing be held on June 25, 2019.   

 

BACKGROUND:  In order to construct a private utility, tower or antenna for the wireless 

transmission of electrical energy above the frequency of 20,000 hertz a Conditional Use 

Permit issued by City Council is required. 

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 

 Conditional Use Permit Application and supplemental information  

 Staff Report 

 Pictures 

 Maps 

STAFF:   Tevya Williams Griffin, Director, Department of Development  

 

    

6



Case: CUP submitted by PI Tower Development  Page 1 

                                                            Applicant: PI Tower Development  
130 Mercer Lane 
Conditional Use Permit 
Staff Report prepared for the City Council Regular Meeting 
 
June 4, 2019 
 

 
 
This report is prepared by the City of Hopewell Department of Development Staff to 
provide information to the City Council to assist them in making an informed decision on 
this matter. 
 
I. PUBLIC HEARINGS & WORK SESSIONS: 
 

Planning Commission May 30, 2019 Recommended Approval 
City Council June 11, 2019 Work Session 

 

II. IDENTIFICATION AND LOCATIONAL INFORMATION: 
 

Requested Zoning: N/A 
Existing Zoning: R-4, Residential, Apartments 
Acreage: .64 acres or 27,878 acres 
Owner: Carmen A. Bean 
Location of Property: Located 200 feet off of River Road, with 

the nearest intersection being S. Colonial 
Drive 

Election Ward: Ward 4 
Land Use Plan Recommendation: Suburban Residential 
Strategic Plan Goal: N/A 
Map Location(s): Sub Parcel #: 106-0630 

Lots 3,4 & Part of Lot 21, .067 Mitchells 
Zoning of Surrounding Property: North:  R-4 

South:  R-2 & R-4 
East:    R-1 
West:   R-1 

III. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
The City of Hopewell has received a request from PI Tower Development to place a 195 
foot cellular tower at 130 Mercer Lane, located 200 feet from River Road in Ward 4.   
The Hopewell Zoning Ordinance requires an owner to receive a Conditional Use Permit 

7



Case: CUP submitted by PI Tower Development  Page 2 

from City Council to place any private utility, towers or antenna for wireless transmission 
above the frequency of twenty thousand (20,000) hertz 

 
APPLICABLE CODE SECTIONS: 
The provisions of the Zoning Ordinance that are germane to this request for a Conditional 
Use Permit are the following: 
Article VI. Residential Apartments District (R-4), Statement of Intent  

This district is intended as a high density, multifamily district and encompasses 
such areas which are already established within the city as well as areas intended 
for future development of this type. To this end, the regulations are designed to 
stabilize and protect the essential characteristics of the district and to promote and 
encourage such development, and provide a suitable living environment for 
person desiring the amenities of apartment living. 

 
Article VI. Residential Apartments District (R-4), Section A 

In residential apartment district R-4, land may be used and buildings or structures 
erected, altered or used only for the following (with off-street parking as required 
for the uses permitted within the district): 
 
10. Private utilities, towers or antenna for the wireless transmission above the frequency of 
twenty thousand (20,000) hertz, with a conditional use permit issued by city council. 

 
Article XXI, Amendments, Section D, Conditional and Special Use Permits, Sub-Section 
c. 1-3: 
 

1. When the Director has certified that the application is complete, it shall be 
deemed received and referred to the Planning Commission for its review and 
recommendation to City Council.  

 
2. The Planning Commission shall, within ninety (90) days after the first 

meeting of the Planning Commission after such referral, report to the City 
Council its recommendation as to the approval or disapproval of such 
application and any recommendation for establishment of conditions, in 
addition to those set forth in this Article, deemed necessary to protect the 
public interest and welfare. Failure of the Planning Commission to report 
within ninety (90) days shall be deemed a recommendation of approval.  

 
3. Upon receipt of the recommendation of the Planning Commission, the City 

Council, after public notice in accordance with Virginia Code § 15.2-2204, 
shall hold at least one public hearing on such application, and as a result 
thereof, shall either approve or deny the request.  

 
 

8



Case: CUP submitted by PI Tower Development  Page 3 

 
 

Article XXI, Section D, Conditional and Special Use Permits, subsection (4) 
  

4. In approving any conditional use permit, the City Council may impose 
conditions or limitations on any approval, as it may deem necessary to 
protect the public interest and welfare.  Such additional standards may 
include, but need not be limited to: 

 
i. Special setbacks, yard or construction requirements, increased 

screening or landscaping requirements, area requirements, 
development phasing, and standards pertaining to traffic, 
circulation, noise, lighting, hours of operation and similar 
characteristics; and 
 

ii. A performance guarantee, acceptable in form, content and amount 
to the City, posted by the applicant to ensure continued compliance 
with all conditions and requirements as may be specified.  

Article XXI, Amendments, Section D, Sub-Section d. 
 

d. Approval Criteria 
 

As may be specified within each zoning district, the Planning Commission and 
approval by the City Council shall permit uses permitted subject to conditional 
use review criteria only after review only if the applicant demonstrates that:  
 
1. The proposed conditional use is in compliance with all regulations of the 

applicable zoning district, the provisions of this Article, and any 
applicable General Provisions as set forth in the Zoning Ordinance.  
 

2. The establishment, maintenance, or operation of the proposed use is not 
detrimental to, and will not endanger, the public health, safety, morals, 
comfort, or general welfare. 
 

3. The conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other 
property in the immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor 
substantially impair the use of other property within the immediate 
proximity. 
 

4. The proposed conditional use conforms to the character of the 
neighborhood within the same zoning district in which it is located. The 
proposal as submitted or modified shall have no more adverse effects on 
health, safety or comfort of persons living or working in or driving 
through the neighborhood, and shall be no more injurious to property or 
improvements in the neighborhood, than would any other use generally 
permitted in the same district. In making such a determination, 
consideration shall be given to the location, type, size, and height of 

9



Case: CUP submitted by PI Tower Development  Page 4 

buildings or structures, type and extent of landscaping and screening on 
the site, and whether the proposed use is consistent with any theme, 
action, policy or map of the Comprehensive Plan.  
 

5. The exterior architectural appeal and function plan of any proposed 
structure will not be so at variance with either the exterior architectural 
appeal and functional plan of the structures already constructed or in the 
course of construction in the immediate neighborhood or the character of 
the applicable zoning district, and shall enhance the quality of the 
neighborhood. 

 
6. The public interest and welfare supporting the proposed conditional use is 

sufficient to outweigh the individual interests, which are adversely 
affected by the establishment of the proposed use.  
  

7. The proposed use will not result in the destruction, loss or damage of any 
feature determined to be of significant ecological, scenic or historic 
importance.  

 

IV. SUBJECT PROPERTY: 
A single detached home is located on the subject property.  According to City records, 
The property is 0.64 acres.  The applicant proposes to build a 199 foot cellular tower, to 
include a 4 foot antenna for T-Mobile.  The subject property is zoned R-4, and located off 
of River Road closest to its intersection with South Colonial Drive. Located directly 
across the street is a wooded area, owned by the Hopewell School Board, on the Patrick 
Copeland and high school site.  

VI. ZONING/STAFF ANALYSIS: 
The applicant has provided a thorough packet that outlines the purpose of the cellular 
tower along with answers to the Conditional Use Permit application and the City Council 
policy on cellular towers.  Staff concludes that the information provided meets all 
requirements of the cell tower policy.   
A cell tower of this magnitude is allowed in the R-4 Zoning District by a Conditional Use 
Permit. The conditions that must be considered by the Board are provided on pages 3 and 
4 of this report.  It is Staff’s opinion that the applicant has fulfilled the requirements of 
Criteria 1 -3.   
In regards to Criteria 4, a cell tower of this height will never conform to the character of 
the zoning district unless it is industrial in nature, however, this would disallow all cell 
towers in districts other than industrial.  This is not the spirit of Criteria 4.  Instead the 
City Council should consider if the applicant has taken all measures to ensure the tower’s 
location, type, size, and height will not be detrimental to the zoning district or 
surrounding area.  
 
Staff concludes that Criteria 5 is not applicable for cellular towers.  This criteria deals 
with the architectural compatibility of like structures such as homes or commercial 
buildings.  

10



Case: CUP submitted by PI Tower Development  Page 5 

 
Criteria 6 cannot be answered until the Commission considers the opinion of residents 
and others during a public hearing.   

  
The proposed property is not located within an historic district, therefore, Criteria 7 is 
only applicable in regards to scenic or ecological importance.  The location of the tower 
is within a Resource Management Area (RMA).  During the site plan process, the 
application will be required to meet all regulations of the Chesapeake Bay Protection 
Area.  In regards to scenic importance, the area has not been designated a scenic 
highway.  The applicant has proposed a galvanized steel tower, “that will match the 
backdrop of the sky”.  
 

VII. PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLTION: 
At their meeting on May 30, 2019. in accordance with Article XXI, Amendments, of the 
Hopewell Zoning Ordinance, the Hopewell Planning Commission with a vote of 4-0 
recommended approval of the request submitted by PI Tower Development to construct a 
195 foot cellular tower with a four (4) foot at 130 Mercer Lane, also identified as Sub-
Parcel # 106-0630. 
 
Attachment(s): 

1. Application for Conditional Use Permit 
2. Photometrics 
3. Location Maps & Site Plan  

 

11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



 

WS-2 
 



 

 

 
SUMMARY: 

Y N       Y N  

□ □ Councilor Debbie Randolph, Ward #1    □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 

□ □ Councilor John B. Partin, Ward #3    □ □ Vice Mayor Patience Bennett, Ward #7 

□ □ Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

 

       

  

 

CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

 

 

Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 

Culture & Recreation  

Economic Development 

Education 

Housing 

Safe & Healthy Environment  

None (Does not apply) 

 

Order of Business: 

Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing          

Presentation-Boards/Commissions  

Unfinished Business            

Citizen/Councilor Request      

Regular Business 

Reports of Council Committees  
 

 

Action: 

Approve and File  

Take Appropriate Action  

Receive & File (no motion required) 

Approve Ordinance 1
st
 Reading 

Approve Ordinance 2
nd

 Reading 

 Set a Public Hearing       

Approve on Emergency Measure  

 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:    Work Session to discuss a request for a 

Conditional Use Permit to operate a duplex at 2907 Poplar Street  

ISSUE:  The Residential, Medium Density District (R-2) requires a Conditional Use Permit, 

approved by the City Council, in order to operate a duplex. 

RECOMMENDATION:  Hold a work session to discuss the application and set a public 

hearing.  

TIMING: The work session is scheduled for June 11, 2019.  Staff is requesting the public 

hearing be held on June 25, 2019.   

 

BACKGROUND:  The owner of 2907 Poplar Street is requesting the conversion of a single 

family detached home into a duplex, a home designed for occupancy by two families.  In the 

R-2 Zoning District a Conditional Use Permit is required to establish a duplex.   

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 

 Conditional Use Permit Application 

 Staff Report 

 Pictures 

 Map 

STAFF:   Tevya Williams Griffin, Director, Department of Development  

 

    

43



Case: CUP submitted by Christopher W. Jenkins  Page 1 

                                                            Agent: Christopher W. Jenkins  

2907 Poplar Street 

Conditional Use Permit 
Staff Report prepared for the City Council Work Session 

 

 June 11, 2019 

 

 

 

This report is prepared by the City of Hopewell Department of Development Staff to 

provide information to the City Council to assist them in making an informed decision on 

this matter. 

 

I. PUBLIC HEARINGS & WORK SESSIONS: 

 

Planning Commission 

Public Hearing 

May 2, 2019 Public Hearing held. No 

decision made. Tabled until 

next meeting date 

Planning Commission May 30, 2019 Recommended Denial 

City Council Work 

Session 

June 11, 2019 No action necessary 

 

II. IDENTIFICATION AND LOCATIONAL INFORMATION: 

 

Requested Zoning: N/A 

Existing Zoning: R-2, Residential, Medium Density 

Acreage: 6,000 square feet 

Owner: Christopher W Jenkins 

Location of Property: 159 feet from the intersection of Roanoke 

Avenue and Poplar Street 

Election Ward: Ward 7 

Land Use Plan Recommendation: Urban Residential 

Strategic Plan Goal: N/A 

Map Location(s): Sub Parcel #: 043-0129 

Lot 16-17, Block D, High Point 

Subdivision 

Zoning of Surrounding Property: North:  R-2 

South:  B-4 

East:     B-4 

West:   R-2 

 

 

44



Case: CUP submitted by Christopher W. Jenkins  Page 2 

 

 

III. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

The City of Hopewell has received a request from Christopher W. Jenkins for a 

Conditional Use Permit (CUP) in accordance with Article IV, Section A, Uses, to allow a 

duplex in the R-2, Residential, Medium Density Zoning District.  

IV. APPLICABLE CODE SECTIONS: 

The provisions of the Zoning Ordinance that are germane to this request for a Conditional 

Use Permit are the following: 

 

Article IV, Residential, Medium Density District (R-2), Section A. - Use Regulation: 

In the R-2 residential district, land may be used and buildings or structures may be 

erected, altered or used, only for the following (with off-street parking as required for the 

uses permitted within the district): 

2. Duplex (zero (0) lot line permissible) with a conditional use permit based on 

compatibility with the adjacent area issued by the city council (special definition). 

 

Article I, Definitions 

Dwelling, two-family (duplex): A structure arranged or designed to be occupied by two 

(2) families, the structure having only two (2) dwelling units. 

 

Article XXI, Amendments, Section D, Conditional and Special Use Permits, Sub-Section 

c. 1-3: 

 

1. When the Director has certified that the application is complete, it shall be 

deemed received and referred to the Planning Commission for its review and 

recommendation to City Council.  

 

2. The Planning Commission shall, within ninety (90) days after the first 

meeting of the Planning Commission after such referral, report to the City 

Council its recommendation as to the approval or disapproval of such 

application and any recommendation for establishment of conditions, in 

addition to those set forth in this Article, deemed necessary to protect the 

public interest and welfare. Failure of the Planning Commission to report 

within ninety (90) days shall be deemed a recommendation of approval.  

 

3. Upon receipt of the recommendation of the Planning Commission, the City 

Council, after public notice in accordance with Virginia Code § 15.2-2204, 

45



Case: CUP submitted by Christopher W. Jenkins  Page 3 

shall hold at least one public hearing on such application, and as a result 

thereof, shall either approve or deny the request.  

 

Article XXI, Section D, Conditional and Special Use Permits, subsection (4) 

  

4. In approving any conditional use permit, the City Council may impose 

conditions or limitations on any approval, as it may deem necessary to 

protect the public interest and welfare.  Such additional standards may 

include, but need not be limited to: 

 

i. Special setbacks, yard or construction requirements, increased 

screening or landscaping requirements, area requirements, 

development phasing, and standards pertaining to traffic, 

circulation, noise, lighting, hours of operation and similar 

characteristics; and 

 

ii. A performance guarantee, acceptable in form, content and amount 

to the City, posted by the applicant to ensure continued compliance 

with all conditions and requirements as may be specified.  

Article XXI, Amendments, Section D, Sub-Section d. 

 

d. Approval Criteria 

 

As may be specified within each zoning district, the Planning Commission and 

approval by the City Council shall permit uses permitted subject to conditional 

use review criteria only after review only if the applicant demonstrates that:  

 

1. The proposed conditional use is in compliance with all regulations of the 

applicable zoning district, the provisions of this Article, and any 

applicable General Provisions as set forth in the Zoning Ordinance.  

 

2. The establishment, maintenance, or operation of the proposed use is not 

detrimental to, and will not endanger, the public health, safety, morals, 

comfort, or general welfare. 

 

3. The conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other 

property in the immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor 

substantially impair the use of other property within the immediate 

proximity. 

 

4. The proposed conditional use conforms to the character of the 

neighborhood within the same zoning district in which it is located. The 

proposal as submitted or modified shall have no more adverse effects on 

health, safety or comfort of persons living or working in or driving 

through the neighborhood, and shall be no more injurious to property or 

improvements in the neighborhood, than would any other use generally 

permitted in the same district. In making such a determination, 

46



Case: CUP submitted by Christopher W. Jenkins  Page 4 

consideration shall be given to the location, type, size, and height of 

buildings or structures, type and extent of landscaping and screening on 

the site, and whether the proposed use is consistent with any theme, 

action, policy or map of the Comprehensive Plan.  

 

5. The exterior architectural appeal and function plan of any proposed 

structure will not be so at variance with either the exterior architectural 

appeal and functional plan of the structures already constructed or in the 

course of construction in the immediate neighborhood or the character of 

the applicable zoning district, and shall enhance the quality of the 

neighborhood.   

 

6. The public interest and welfare supporting the proposed conditional use is 

sufficient to outweigh the individual interests, which are adversely 

affected by the establishment of the proposed use.  

  

7. The proposed use will not result in the destruction, loss or damage of any 

feature determined to be of significant ecological, scenic or historic 

importance.  

 

IV. SUBJECT PROPERTY: 

The subject property is located at 2907 Poplar Street.  The current owner purchased the 

home in February of 2019.  Previously, the same owner occupied the home for twenty 

(20) years.  The home has two units; with access from the front and the side.  The home 

was built in 1951 and currently accesses for $78,700.  The home is 1 ½ stories with 1,704 

square feet.  It is located in the R-2, Residential, Medium Density District.  

VI. ZONING/STAFF ANALYSIS: 

A duplex is allowed in the R-2 Zoning District with a Conditional Use Permit.  The home 

has been used as a duplex for many years; first for family members and later it was rented 

to a tenant.  The latter was an illegal use of the property.  The current owner is requesting 

the ability to rent both units legally.  A duplex is defined in the Zoning Ordinance as a 

structure arranged or designed to be occupied by two (2) families, the structure having 

only two (2) dwelling units. 

According to the Zoning Ordinance, the R-2 Zoning district is intended as a single-family 

residential area with low to medium population density. The regulations for this district 

are designed to stabilize and protect the essential characteristics of the district and to 

promote and encourage a suitable environment for family life. To this end, development 

is limited to a relatively low to medium concentration and permitted uses are limited 

basically to providing homes to the residents plus certain additional uses such as schools, 

parks, churches and other types of public facilities that will serve the residents of the 

area. 

 Unit 1, has three (3) bedrooms and one (1) full bath.  

47



Case: CUP submitted by Christopher W. Jenkins  Page 5 

 Unit 2, located on the subsequent floor, is accessible through the home in the 

kitchen and outside at the top floor on the side of the home. This unit has an open 

floor plan and functions as a studio apartment with one (1) full bath.  

 

The City Council must determine if the dwelling at 2907 Poplar Street is suitable as a 

duplex, based on the criteria provided for in Article XXI, Amendments, cited on page 3 

and 4 of this report.  

 

Public Hearing held on May 2, 2019 

The Planning Commission held the public hearing on May 2, 2019.  The public was 

properly opened and closed. Commissioners has outstanding questions and needed clarity 

from the Director of Development on issues raised in the Staff report.  Commissioners 

provided the Director with questions via email.  

On Monday, May 19, 2019 Commissioner Vanderkeift, the Building Official, Fire 

Marshall, and Director Griffin visited the property.  The owner allowed this group to 

view both units and ask questions.   

During the meeting, the Building Official concluded that the interior stairwell to the 

upstairs unit could not be used. The stairs were steep and narrow and does not meet 

current building code.  Furthermore, the kitchen was located at the top of the steps and 

the stove obstructed access to the steps.  The door from the 1st unit kitchen must be 

locked and a gate placed at the top of the steps.  Keeping the stairway open but not 

serviceable would allow emergency personnel access to the top unit if the stairs from the 

outside were inaccessible due to fire or some other emergency.  

It was also concluded by the Building Official and Fire Marshall that each unit would 

require fire suppression (sprinkler system). If a sprinkler system is installed the fire rating 

can be reduced to a one hour fire rating which has already been achieved in the home by 

the placement of sheet rock lathe and the plaster overlay. 

Grandfathered 

During this meeting, there was also conversation regarding the grandfathering of the 

home as a duplex.  However, the conversion and use of this single family dwelling to a 

duplex, regardless of the number of years of operation, does not constitute 

grandfathering. 

The term grandfathering refers to a use that at one time in history was allowable by right, 

and at some time in the future became unallowable through a change in the law. A use is 

not required to cease operation, so is considered to be grandfathered or allowed to 

continue.  In order for this property to fall under the grandfathering clause, the duplex 

would have been allowable in the R-2 Zoning District at the time it was converted.  Staff 

has conducted research of past zoning ordinances, specifically, the R-2 District,  

 

The previous owners converted the upstairs to a unit first for a family member and then 

rented it to persons outside of the family for compensation.  When the unit was rented to 

persons other than family it became a two family home; a duplex.  According to research 

48



Case: CUP submitted by Christopher W. Jenkins  Page 6 

conducted by Staff, the property has not changed zoning districts and at no time was a 

duplex allowed by right in the R-2 zoning district. In fact, in 1976, the duplexes were 

only allowed in the R-4 district. Therefore, the operation of a duplex outside of the 

issuance of a Conditional Use Permit was illegal when converted.   

VII. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Based on the requirement for fire suppression by the Building Official and the Fire 

Marshall, Staff recommends denial of the request submitted by Christopher W. Jenkins 

for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a duplex at 2907 Poplar Street.  As is, the home is 

does not meet safety requirements of the VA Building Code, 2012.  The requests 

therefore does not meet Criteria #2; 

The establishment, maintenance, or operation of the proposed use is not detrimental to, 

and will not endanger, the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare. 

Staff contends that the lack of a fire suppression system in each unit, required for the 

operation of a two family dwelling is not safe for those occupying the units or adjacent 

residents. 

However, it is the opinion of Staff that if the applicant installs the fire suppression system 

as required, the application does meet the criteria and Staff would recommend approval.  

Staff contends that from a zoning lense the requests is an example of middle housing 

coined in the 2028 Comprehensive Plan in Chapter 9, Housing.  It states, middle housing 

is a range of multi-unit or clustered housing types compatible in scale with single-family 

homes that help meet the growing demand for varied housing types and for walkable 

urban living.  This duplex will fit seamlessly in to the fabric of the neighborhood.  Access 

to the second unit is from the rear of the property.  Additionally, there is space on the 

property for off street parking of vehicles.  

 

VIII. PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLTION: 

At their meeting on May 30, 2019 the Hopewell Planning Commission voted 4-0 to deny 

the request submitted by Christopher W. Jenkins to allow a duplex at 2907 Poplar Street, 

also known as Lot 16-17, Block D, High Point.  The Planning Commission concluded 

that the request did not meet criteria #2 and #5 in Article XXI, Section D., of the 

Hopewell Zoning Ordinance.  

 

Attachment(s): 

1. Application for Conditional Use Permit 

2. Supplemental Documentation, including pictures 

3. Location Map (Arc Explorer Map) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

49



Case: CUP submitted by Christopher W. Jenkins  Page 7 

This page is intentionally blank. 

50



Case: CUP submitted by Christopher W. Jenkins  Page 8 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

Aerial Map showing 2907 Poplar Street 

51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



 

WS-3 
 



66



67



68



69



70



 
REGULAR 
MEETING 

 



 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 

 



 

MINUTES 
 



 

 

 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF CITY COUNCIL HELD MAY 22, 2019 
 

A Special Meeting of Hopewell City Council was held Wednesday, May 22, 2019, at 6:00 

p.m. in the City Council Chambers, Municipal Building, and 300 North Main Street, Hopewell, 

Virginia. 

 
  PRESENT:  Jasmine E. Gore, Mayor, Ward 4 

     Patience Bennett, Vice Mayor, Ward 7 

     Arlene Holloway, Councilor, Ward 2 

     John B. Partin, Jr., Councilor, Ward 3 

     Janice Denton, Councilor, Ward 5 
     Brenda Pelham, Councilor, Ward 6 

      

     Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk 

     John M. Altman, Jr., City Manager 

     Stefan Calos, Sands Anderson PC, City Attorney 

      

  ABSENT:  Deborah Randolph, Councilor, Ward 1 

 

ROLL CALL 
 

 Mayor Gore opened the meeting at 6:08 p.m. Roll call was taken as follows: 

 
    Mayor Gore   - present 

    Vice Mayor Bennett  - present 

    Councilor Randolph  - absent 

    Councilor Partin  - present 

    Councilor Holloway  - present 

    Councilor Denton  - present 

    Councilor Pelham  - present 

 

 Mayor Gore explained that Councilor Randolph had a conflict and was unable to attend the 

meeting.  

 

 Discussion followed regarding items to be discussed in Closed Session. 

 

CLOSED SESSION 
  

 At 6:33 p.m. Councilor Pelham moved go into closed meeting for (1) discussion of 

performance of employee of city council (city manager); and consultation with legal counsel 

employed or retained by city council related thereto and regarding specific legal matters requiring the 

provision of legal advice by such counsel, in accordance with Va. Code § 1.1-3711 (A) (1) and (8), 

respectively.  Her motion was seconded by Mayor Gore. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 

 
    Mayor Gore   - yes 

    Vice Mayor Bennett  - yes 

    Councilor Partin  - yes 

    Councilor Holloway  - yes 

    Councilor Denton  - yes 

    Councilor Pelham  - yes 

71



May 22, 2019 

Special Meeting 

 

2 | P a g e  
 

Motion passed 6-0 

 

RECONVENE OPEN MEETING 

 

Council convened into Open Session at 8:28 p.m. and responded to the question pursuant to 

Virginia Code § 2.2-3712 (D): were only public business matters (I) lawfully exempted from open-

meeting requirements and (II) identified in the closed-meeting motion discussed in closed meeting? 

Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 

 
    Mayor Gore   - yes 

    Vice Mayor Bennett  - yes 

    Councilor Partin  - yes 

    Councilor Holloway  - yes 

    Councilor Denton  - yes 

    Councilor Pelham  - yes 

 

ADJOURN 

 

 At 8:30 p.m., Councilor Partin moved to adjourn the meeting. Mayor Gore seconded the 

motion. All councilors responded “aye” to the question.  Meeting was adjourned. 

 

 

 

 

       

       /s/ Jasmine E. Gore   

       Jasmine E. Gore, Mayor 

 

 

/s/ Ronnieye L. Arrington   

Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk  

       

72



 

 

 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF CITY COUNCIL HELD MAY 20, 2019 
 

A Special Meeting of Hopewell City Council was held Monday, May 20, 2019, at 6:30 p.m. 

in the City Council Chambers, Municipal Building, and 300 North Main Street, Hopewell, Virginia. 

 
  PRESENT:  Jasmine E. Gore, Mayor, Ward 4 

     Patience Bennett, Vice Mayor, Ward 7 (arrived at 6:50 p.m.) 

     Deborah Randolph, Councilor, Ward 1 

     Arlene Holloway, Councilor, Ward 2 

     John B. Partin, Jr., Councilor, Ward 3 

     Janice Denton, Councilor, Ward 5 
     Brenda Pelham, Councilor, Ward 6 

      

     Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk 

     John M. Altman, Jr., City Manager 

     Stefan Calos, Sands Anderson PC, City Attorney 

      

ROLL CALL 
 

 Mayor Gore opened the meeting at 6:32 p.m. Roll call was taken as follows: 

 
    Mayor Gore   - present 

    Vice Mayor Bennett  - absent (arrived at 6:50 p.m.) 

    Councilor Randolph  - present 

    Councilor Partin  - present 

    Councilor Holloway  - present 

    Councilor Denton  - present 

    Councilor Pelham  - present 

 

 Councilor Partin moved to amend the agenda so that the Census Committee was Work Session 1, 

the presentation from Davenport was Work Session 2, the FY20 City of Hopewell Budget was Work 

Session 3, Council’s Pending List was Work Session 4, and discussion of Council’s Boards, committees, 

commission and authorities was Work Session 5.  The Closed Meeting was moved so that it occurred 

between items Work Session 3 and Work Session 4. Mayor Gore Seconded the motion. Upon the roll call, 

the vote resulted: 

 

    Councilor Randolph  - yes 

    Councilor Holloway  - yes 

    Councilor Partin  - yes 

    Mayor Gore   - yes 

    Councilor Denton  - yes 

    Councilor Pelham  - yes 

    Vice Mayor Bennett  - --- (arrived at 6:50 p.m.) 

Motion passed 6-0 

 

 

WORK SESSION – 1 

 Ms. Shirley Gilliam of the Census presented information for Council. She advised about the 

upcoming 2020 census, and how important it was that Hopewell be accurately represented in that census. 

She said that the most underreported communities were the homeless, veterans and children under the age 

73



May 20, 2019 

Special Meeting 

 

2 | P a g e  
 

of five. She also said that quite often people living in HRHA housing were also underreported. Ms. 

Gilliam advised that the 2020 census would not utilize the long form, but would be available online. She 

also advised about jobs that will be available for the Census. These jobs will be listed on USA Jobs.  Ms. 

Gilliam noted that the start date for the 2020 census was April 1, 2020. 

 

WORK SESSION -2 
 James E. Sanderson of Davenport & Company presented information to Council regarding the 

status of Hopewell’s bonds, total debt service, including those supported by taxes. Mr. Sanderson also 

discussed the City’s bond ratings and what items would impact the rating or stop it from returning to its 

former status once the CAFRs are all completed. Councilor Pelham stated that Hopewell needed an onsite 

internal auditor to ensure there are no additional glitches with future CAFRs. Councilor Partin asked if 

increasing the Rainy Day Fund would also increase our bond rating. Mr. Sanderson advised that an 

increase in the Rainy Day Fund would be viewed as a positive which could improve the bond rating. 

Mayor Gore asked if the City borrowed money after the CAFRs were completed, would that negatively 

impact the bond rating. Mr. Sanderson replied that it could, but due to the debt payoffs the City has been 

doing, it would probably not have an adverse effect. Mayor Gore asked if Mr. Sanderson would meet with 

the Investment Committee, to which he replied in the affirmative. Councilor Partin asked if the City put 

up 10% of a project cost and borrowed the remaining 90%, would this fiscal policy have a positive effect 

on the bond rating. Mr. Sanderson advised that it would have a positive effect. 

 

WORK SESSION – 3 
 John “March” Altman, city manager, presented Council with responses to requests Council had 

made of him in previous meetings.  Council discussed several items, including the Marina. Mr. Aaron 

Reidmiller, Director of Parks and Recreation explained to Council that the marina lease will expire in 

March 2020, and then an RFP would go out. He said they may extend the lease, depending on the 

situation. He also said that he would come back before Council in either a work session or in closed 

session to discuss this item when the time came.  There was additional conversation regarding the roof for 

the marina, which needed repair. Mr. Altman said they could use funds left in the Unfounded Balance. 

Councilor Randolph asked if there were any other emergency items, like the roof, to which Mr. Altman 

responded in the negative.  Mayor Gore requested an updated Cost Analysis for doing the police station—

real life analysis. Councilor Randolph asked if the police station was over or under budget. Mr. Altman 

responded that currently the police station was $50k under budget. Mayor Gore asked about the funds for 

the VCU study. Mr. Altman advised that he had placed the $165k in his budget. Councilor Holloway 

asked about status of renovation to the DSS building. Mr. Altman said they would only fix that building if 

someone were interested in purchasing it. In response to a question asked at a previous meeting, Mr. 

Altman advised that adding $1 to wastewater fees would result in $232k additional revenue, according to 

Joe Battiata, Stormwater Program Manager. 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

  
 Councilor Partin moved to go into closed meeting for (1) discussion, consideration and 

interviews of specific appointees or employees of city council (city manager, city clerk, city 

attorney);  (2) discussion and consideration of specific appointees of city council (boards, 

commissions, authorities); and (3) and consultation with legal counsel employed or retained by city 

council related thereto and regarding specific legal matters, requiring the provision of legal advice 

by such counsel in accordance with Virginia Code § 2.2-3711 (A) (1) [two items], and (8), 

respectively.  His motion was seconded by Mayor Gore. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 

 
    Councilor Randolph  - yes 

74



May 20, 2019 

Special Meeting 

 

3 | P a g e  
 

    Councilor Holloway  - yes 

    Councilor Partin  - yes 

    Mayor Gore   - yes 

    Councilor Denton  - yes 

    Councilor Pelham  - yes 

    Vice Mayor Bennett  - yes 

Motion passed 7-0 

 

 

ADJOURN 
 

 At 9:30 p.m., per Council rules, this meeting was automatically adjourned. 

 

       

       /s/ Jasmine E. Gore   

       Jasmine E. Gore, Mayor 

 

 

/s/ Ronnieye L. Arrington   

Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk  

       

75



 

PERSONNEL 
CHANGE 
REPORT 



 

DATE:  May 31, 2019  

TO:  The Honorable City Council 

FROM:  Michelle Ingram, Human Resources Specialist  

SUBJECT: Personnel Change Report – May 31, 2019 

 

APPOINTMENTS: 

NAME DEPARTMENT POSITION DATE 

FIELDS, EILEEN PUBLIC WORKS SR ADMIN ASST 05/22/2019 

HANSEN, DAKOTA FIRE FIREFIGHTER/ALS 05/22/2019 

THARPE, JAMES  FIRE FIREFIGHTER/ALS 05/22/2019 

NICKERSON, JAMES VOTER REGISTRAR P/T TEMP 05/08/2019 

VARNER, COURTNEY SHERIFF P/T DISPATCH 05/22/2019 

HOGAN-MCKNIGHT, DEBRA CITY CLERK ASST CITY CLERK 05/23/2019 

PINEIRO, NANERIZ RECREATION P/T LIFEGUARD 05/22/2019 

BROWN, MADISON RECREATION 
P/T SPEC EVENTS 

ASST  
05/22/2019 

WEBER, MAGDALEN RECREATION P/T LIFEGUARD 05/22/2019 
 

SUSPENSIONS: 1 

(Other information excluded under Va. Code § 2.2-3705.1(1) as personnel information 

concerning identifiable individuals)  

 

REMOVALS: 

 

NAME 
DEPARTMENT POSITION DATE 

JESSUP, DENISE POLICE VIC WIT PROG ASST 05/28/2019 

JONES, ALVIN PUBLIC WORKS P/T ST MAINT WORK 05/11/2019 

LOPEZ, LAWRENCE PUBLIC WORKS PW SUPERVISOR 05/31/2019 

SCOTT, FORREST WATER RENEWAL ELEC & INST TECH I 05/27/2019 

SUMMA, ASHLEY RECREATION P/T CUST SVC AGNT 04/30/2019 

 
 
 
March Altman, City Manager     Concetta Manker, IT Director 
Charles Dane, Assistant City Manager   Jay Rezin, IT 
Jennifer Sears, HR Director    Arlethia Dearing, Customer Service Mgr. 
Dave Harless, Risk & Safety Coordinator  Kim Hunter, Payroll 
Debbie Pershing, Administrative Services Manager Vanessa Williams, Accounting Tech 
Michael Terry, Finance Director 
Dipo Muritala, Assistant Finance Director 

 

  
76



  

INFORMATION 
FOR COUNCIL 

REVIEW 
 



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



101



102



103



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



 

 

 
SUMMARY: 

Y N       Y N  

□ □ Councilor Debbie Randolph, Ward #1    □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 

□ □ Councilor John B. Partin, Ward #3    □ □ Vice Mayor Patience Bennett, Ward #7 

□ □ Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

 

       

  

 

CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

 

 

Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 

Culture & Recreation  

Economic Development 

Education 

Housing 

Safe & Healthy Environment  

None (Does not apply) 

 

Order of Business: 

  Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing          

Presentation-Boards/Commissions  

Unfinished Business            

Citizen/Councilor Request      

Regular Business 

Reports of Council Committees  
 

 

Action: 

Approve and File  

Take Appropriate Action  

Receive & File (no motion required) 

Approve Ordinance 1
st
 Reading 

Approve Ordinance 2
nd

 Reading 

  Set a Public Hearing       

Approve on Emergency Measure  

 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:     

Presentation by Friends of the Lower Appomattox River 

ISSUE:  The Friends of the Lower Appomattox River (FOLAR) is a non-profit river advocacy 

group that works to conserve and protect the river for all to enjoy.  FOLAR has been 

instrumental in several projects along the river.  FOLAR will present information on projects to 

date, initiatives, goals for the future, and the positive impact on the City of Hopewell.   

RECOMMENDATION:  City staff recommends that City Council receive the information 

presented by FOLAR.   

TIMING:  The presentation will be given at the June 11, 2019 meeting of City Council.   

 

BACKGROUND: FOLAR has been instrumental in projects like the Hopewell Riverwalk and 

the Appomattox River Trail signage master plan.  They are requesting resolutions of support for 

their work in each of the six jurisdictions that surround the lower Appomattox River.   

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 

 FOLAR Presentation 

STAFF:    

Aaron Reidmiller, Director of Recreation and Parks 

    

128



 

 

Collaborative Partnerships to 

CREATE A WORLD-CLASS TRAIL SYSTEM 
ALONG THE APPOMATTOX RIVER  

129



Petersburg WOW Camp 

Battersea Bridges 

Environmental Stewardship 

Outdoor Education Community Support 

Infrastructure Improvements 

FOLAR works in partnership with 
communities to conserve and protect 
the Appomattox River for all to enjoy.  

 

Canoemobile 
Battersea Bridges 

130



Chesterfield Dinwiddie 

Colonial Heights Hopewell 

 A River Connects Us – The Scenic Appomattox 

Petersburg 

Prince George 

131



A coordinated guide to locating and prioritizing 20+ miles of 

shared-use trails with a coordinated signage system through six 

municipalities 

 

 
Appomattox River Trail  

Master Plan 
 

Funded through a $100,000 grant from       

The Cameron Foundation 

132



Community Benefits 

Conservation  

Health & Wellness 

Economic Growth 

Social Equity   

Riverside Stormwater Greenway – a section of 
the Appomattox River Trail 

133



Conservation 

Trails and green space are beneficial to the environment 
. 

• Preservation of land and historic structures  
• . 

• Pollution abatement by reducing vehicle trips 
 
 

• Prevention/reduction of soil erosion and filter road and 

agricultural runoff - 

 

• Serve as natural floodplain Dept. of Energy & Environ. Protection 
 

• Provides hands-on environmental classroom  
 

Appomattox River Trail 

134



Health and Wellness 
Time visiting green space is beneficial to your health  
 

• Heart-Healthy. Just 30 minutes in a park each week helps control high blood pressure. 

 

• Promotes cancer-fighting cells. Living in areas with a lot of green space lowers 

risk of death as compared to with people in least green places. 
 

• Helps ADHD symptoms and short-term memory. Children with 

ADHD symptoms improved attention after 20 minute park walks. Short term memory improved after a 

nature walk but no improvement after city street walk. 
 

• Helps with depression and anxiety. Walking 90 minutes in natural 

surroundings showed lower activity in the area of the brain linked to depression.  

    
--The Healing Power of Nature. Time July 25, 2016 

 

 

Virginia Creeper 
Trail 

135



Economic Growth 
Trails stimulate tourism and recreation spending and 

catalyze revitalization 
 

VA Outdoors – Powerful Economic Engine 
    $21.9 BILLION In Consumer Spending 
.    197,000 Direct Jobs  
.    $6.5 BILLION In Wages and Salaries    
   .    $1.2 BILLION In State And Local Tax Revenue 
.    $13.61 Generated for every $1 of tax revenue to VA State Parks in 2016 

2017 Outdoor Industry Association 

Increases Regional Trail Assets – Capital Regional Collaborative, 

Regional Rivers Plan: A Top Five Priority; East Coast Greenway; Blue Ridge 

to Beaches Trail; VA Capital Trail; and local trail arteries 

Virginia Capital Trail 

136



Social Equity Quality of Life for All 

Access to the benefits of trails and green space for all…  
 

• Proximity to exercise and recreational opportunities is linked 

to community health Healthy Communities by Design 

 
 

• Cultivates community ties by connecting people more 

deeply to the fabric of the community – National Rec & Parks Assoc. 

 

• Safer neighborhoods and public spaces through social 

interaction, cohesion and sense of place Healthy Communities by Design 

137



Trail Master Plan 

138



Trail Recommendations 

Right: Example of potential 
bridge near historic dam 
structure area. 
Below: Example of shared-use 
trail. 

Shared Use Path 

Patton Park East 

Historic Petersburg 

River Road – Dedicated Path 

139



Creating Identity & Sense-of-Place 

140



Section K - Hopewell 

141



River Rd – bike lanes and sidewalks 
142



Section L - Hopewell 

143



Riverside Stormwater Greenway 

144



Section M - Hopewell 

145



Ribbon Cutting  Photo? 

146



Signage 

147



Other Projects • Petersburg 

• Gateway Project 

• 2 miles of trail design 

 

• Virginia State University 

• Appomattox Overlook 

 

• Colonial Heights 

• Phase 4 & 5 designed & funded 

 

• Cross Sector Partnerships 

• Crater Health District 

 
•  Regional Studies 

• Connection to Virginia  

            Capital Trail 

 

 
 

148



 

Wendy Austin  Heather Barrar 
Executive Director Regional Trails Program Director 
(804) 543-0325  (804) 512-4486 

WAustin@folar-va.org     HBarrar@folar-va.org 

FOLAR-VA.org 
149



150



PUBLIC 
HEARINGS 

 



 
PH-1 

 



 

 

 
SUMMARY: 

Y N       Y N  

□ □ Councilor Debbie Randolph, Ward #1    □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 

□ □ Councilor John B. Partin, Ward #3    □ □ Vice Mayor Patience Bennett, Ward #7 

□ □ Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

 

       

  

 

CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

 

 

Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 

Culture & Recreation  

Economic Development 

Education 

Housing 

Safe & Healthy Environment  

None (Does not apply) 

 

Order of Business: 

  Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing          

Presentation-Boards/Commissions  

Unfinished Business            

Citizen/Councilor Request      

Regular Business 

Reports of Council Committees  
 

 

Action: 

Approve and File  

Take Appropriate Action  

Receive & File (no motion required) 

Approve Ordinance 1
st
 Reading 

Approve Ordinance 2
nd

 Reading 

  Set a Public Hearing       

Approve on Emergency Measure  

 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:     

School Board Appointment 

ISSUE:  Pursuant to Va. Code § 22.1-29.1, a public hearing is required to receive public 

comments regarding the nominees for appointment to the School Board prior to Council making 

the appointment.  There are two positions which will expire June 30, 2019, and which will need 

to be filled. 

RECOMMENDATION:   

TIMING: The two positions end June 30, 2019 

 

BACKGROUND:  

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 

  

STAFF:    

Ronnieye Arrington, City Clerk 

    

154



 

CITY OF HOPEWELL 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
           
Hopewell City Council will hold a public hearing, pursuant to Virginia Code § 22-29.1 (Public hearing 
before appointment of school board members), Tuesday, June 11, 2019 at 7:30 PM, in City Council 
Chambers, 300 N. Main Street, Hopewell, Virginia, to receive public comments regarding nominees 
or applicants to the Hopewell School Board to fill one term, commencing on July 1, 2019 and ending 
June 30, 2022.   
            
Contact the City Clerk at 804-541-2249 with questions. 
 

 

 

153



Code of Virginia
Title 22.1. Education
Chapter 5. School Boards; Selection, Qualification and Salaries of Members

§ 22.1-29.1. Public hearing before appointment of school board 
members.

At least seven days prior to the appointment of any school board member pursuant to the 
provisions of this chapter, of §§ 15.2-410, 15.2-531, 15.2-627 or § 15.2-837, or of any municipal 
charter, the appointing authority shall hold one or more public hearings to receive the views of 
citizens within the school division. The appointing authority shall cause public notice to be given 
at least ten days prior to any hearing by publication in a newspaper having a general circulation 
within the school division. No nominee or applicant whose name has not been considered at a 
public hearing shall be appointed as a school board member.

1985, c. 423; 1987, c. 430.

Page 1 of 1

5/17/2019https://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/title22.1/chapter5/section22.1-29.1/

151



Code of Virginia
Title 22.1. Education
Chapter 5. School Boards; Selection, Qualification and Salaries of Members

§ 22.1-29. Qualifications of members.

Each person appointed or elected to a school board shall, at the time of his appointment or 
election, be a qualified voter and a bona fide resident of the district from which he is selected if 
appointment or election is by district or of the school division if appointment or election is at 
large; and if he shall cease to be a resident of such district or school division, his position on the 
school board shall be deemed vacant.

Code 1950, §§ 22-68, 22-90; 1959, Ex. Sess., c. 78; 1969, Ex. Sess., c. 25; 1980, c. 559; 1997, c. 
727.

Page 1 of 1

5/18/2017http://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/title22.1/chapter5/section22.1-29/

152



 
REGULAR 
BUSINESS 

 



 
R-1 

 
 



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



 

 

 
SUMMARY: 

Y N       Y N  

□ □ Councilor Debbie Randolph, Ward #1    □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 

□ □ Councilor John B. Partin, Ward #3    □ □ Vice Mayor Patience Bennett, Ward #7 

□ □ Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

 

       

  

 

CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

 

 

Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 

Culture & Recreation  

Economic Development 

Education 

Housing 

Safe & Healthy Environment  

None (Does not apply) 

 

Order of Business: 

 Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing          

Presentation-Boards/Commissions  

Unfinished Business            

Citizen/Councilor Request      

Regular Business 

Reports of Council Committees  
 

 

Action: 

Approve and File  

Take Appropriate Action  

Receive & File (no motion required) 

Approve Ordinance 1
st
 Reading 

Approve Ordinance 2
nd

 Reading 

  Set a Public Hearing       

Approve on Emergency Measure  

 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:    Re-appropriation of $62,970 from the 

Planning Code Capital Account to the Community Development Block Grant Program 

(CDBG) 

ISSUE:  The United Stated Department of Housing and Community Development (HUD) 

Richmond Field Office has concluded that funding for two capacity building activities are 

ineligible and that repayment is required. 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approve re-appropriation of $62,970 from the Planning Code 

Capital Account to the CDBG account. 

TIMING: Action is requested on Tuesday, June 11, 2019.  

 

BACKGROUND:  The Richmond HUD Field Office has concluded that two activities funded 

using CDBG capacity building funds should have been categorized for public service.  

Although the two activities have been approved by HUD for four years under the same 

category, funds must be repaid to HUD and reallocated into the City’s FY20 CDBG budget.  

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 

 Letter from HUD 

 Documentation regarding funded activities 

STAFF:   Tevya Williams Griffin, Director, Department of Development  

 

    

166



Community Development 

Block Grant Request for 

Re-appropriation of Funds  

1 167



Mission of HUD 

HUD’s mission is to create strong, sustainable, inclusive communities and  

quality affordable homes for all. 

2 168



Strategic Goals of the City Council  

(Adopted September 2014)  

Pertaining to CDBG Funding 

 

 Rehabilitation of Housing 

 Family Services including elderly and disabled 

 Education, primarily adult and pre-school literacy 

 Public Safety 

3 169



CDBG BUDGET 

 Total APPROPRIATION = $195,798.83 for FY 2018-2019 

 Re-appropriation of $13,210.00  from past infrastructure 

projects. 

 Re-appropriation of $4,740.80 from Rebuilding Together 

Richmond (formerly Re-building Together Tri-Cities) 2017-18 

project.  

 Total amount of re-appropriation into the CDBG 2018-19 

budget was $17,950.83 

 

4 170



CDBG Funding Categories 

HUD Funding 

Category 

Allowable 

Allocation 

Allowable Activities 

Public Service 15% Homeless services, elderly 

initiatives, youth initiatives, 

food insecurity – at least 51% 

of participants must be 

considered low to moderate 

income 

Administrative Planning  20% Salary, office supplies, 

training, advertisements, fair 

housing impediment study 

Community Redevelopment 65% Neighborhood redevelopment, 

capacity building, 

infrastructure improvements, 

housing rehabilitation, 

emergency housing repair -at 

least 51% of participants must 

be considered low to moderate 

income 

5 171



HUD Monitoring  
 HUD monitors Grantees every 4- 5 years 

 May 7 & 9, 2018 – HUD Monitoring of City’s CDBG Program 

 November 2, 2018 – Date of letter regarding three findings 

 Matrix Code 19 C for Smart Beginnings and Reading is Fun; 

 Matrix Code 5A should have been Code 5 for Hopewell Food Pantry; 

 Provide schedule for monitoring of sub-recipients. 

HUD removed finding for Matrix Code 5A/5  

The City has provided a schedule for sub-recipient monitoring's. 

Staff met with Director of HUD Richmond Field Office late February 2019 to 

dispute repayment.  

 

 
6 172



Repayment 
 The City has funded both Smart Beginnings and Reading is Fundamental with CDBG 

funding for several years 

 HUD has approved the matrix code and funding for both projects for all years. This 

information is included in the Consolidated Plan (5 year Plan), the Annual Plan (yearly 

plan that meets goal of Consolidated Plan), and the CAPER (Consolidated Annual 

Performance Evaluation Report). However, according to HUD, this approval is not 

guaranteed, and a “more detailed review” may determine inconsistencies in “eligibility, 

beneficiaries and expenditures”. 

 Smart Beginnings - $30,000 (2016 and 2017) 

 Reading is Fundamental - $24, 000 (2016 and 2017) 

 Smart Beginnings - $8,970 (2018) 

 Once paid, HUD will return the $62,9700 to the City’s CDBG line of credit to be used 

in the FY20 CDBG Budget 

 City set repayment date by June 30, 2019. 

 Recommending repayment from Development Code Capital Account also identified as 

the Demolition account. Current balance is approximately $103,000.  
7 173



Questions? 

8 174



 
R-2 

 
 



 

 

 
SUMMARY: 

Y N       Y N  

□ □ Councilor Debbie Randolph, Ward #1    □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 

□ □ Councilor John B. Partin, Ward #3    □ □ Vice Mayor Patience Bennett, Ward #7 

□ □ Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

 

       

  

 

CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

 

 

Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 

Culture & Recreation  

Economic Development 

Education 

Housing 

Safe & Healthy Environment  

None (Does not apply) 

 

Order of Business: 

  Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing          

Presentation-Boards/Commissions  

Unfinished Business            

Citizen/Councilor Request      

Regular Business 

Reports of Council Committees  
 

 

Action: 

Approve and File  

Take Appropriate Action  

Receive & File (no motion required) 

Approve Ordinance 1
st
 Reading 

Approve Ordinance 2
nd

 Reading 

  Set a Public Hearing       

Approve on Emergency Measure  

 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:     

FY 2019-2020 City Budget Resolution Amendment 

ISSUE:  City Council requested amended language to the budget resolution 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the revised budget resolution 

TIMING:  Approval is requested on June 11, 2019 

 

BACKGROUND:  At the May 28, 2019 City Council meeting, Council requested changes to 

Section 8, adding the word “capital,” Section 14, replacing the “Director of Finance” with “City 

Manager,” and Section 24, adding language requiring the City Manager to City Council approval 

to transfer funds between fund accounts.  The attached revised FY20 Budget Resolution 

addresses the request of City Council. 

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 

 Revised FY20 Budget Resolution 

STAFF:    

John M. Altman, Jr., City Manager 

Michael Terry, Director of Finance 

    

175



 1 

BUDGET RESOLUTION 
FISCAL YEAR 2019-20 

 
WHEREAS, at the meeting of the City Council of the City of Hopewell held on May 28, 

2019, a budget of the estimated revenues and expenditures for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 
2019, and ending June 30, 2020, showing the expenditures of the preceding year, the amount 
appropriated for the current year, and the proposed expenditures for the ensuing twelve months 
was introduced in its complete form; of which $137,691,433 is estimated to be received from 
sources other than property tax levies, leaving a balance to be raised by levies on property 
segregated to the City for local taxes of $33,688,989 and, 
 

WHEREAS, a tax rate sufficient to raise the last mentioned sum has been levied by 
ordinance of the City Council of the City of Hopewell; and, 
 

WHEREAS, in this budget approved by City Council there are estimates of revenues 
used for appropriated expenditures to pay for said city services, and when said estimated 
revenues are projected by the City Manager to be less than the amount of appropriated 
expenditures, the City Manager shall initiate action to adjust appropriated expenditures to agree 
with revised estimated revenues.  The City Manager is directed to advise City Council, at the 
next scheduled meeting, of the adjustments made and City Council may amend said adjustments 
or offer alternatives as the appropriating body; and, 
 
BE IT, HEREBY, RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Hopewell: 
 
 
Sec. 1 The following funds and accounts shall be appropriated from the designated revenues 

to operate City services and to provide a capital improvement program for the City: 
 
 
General Fund-011:  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  From Local Sources 
 

  
    General Property Taxes ..........................................................................  

 
$33,688,989  

    Other Local Taxes ..................................................................................  
 

6,100,000  
    Licenses, Permits, Fees ..........................................................................  881,000  
    Fines & Forfeitures ................................................................................  1,630,000  
    Use of Money/Property………………………………………………. 55,000  
    In-Lieu of Taxes………………………………………………………. 930,000  
    Other Local Revenues ............................................................................  330,500 

 
 
 

  
 
 

 
  

  From Other Agencies 
 

  
    State Sources ..........................................................................................  7,000,000 
    Federal Sources ......................................................................................  200,000  
 

 
 

176



 2 

 
  Cost Recovery & Reserves  

 
  

    Cost Recovery from Social Services-012 ..............................................  507,000  
    Cost Recovery from Solid Waste-030 ...................................................  

 
598,040  

    Cost Recovery from Sewer Services-031 ..............................................  
 

382,500  
    Use of Reserve Funds ............................................................................  0  
    Total Revenues .......................................................................................  $52,303,029  
 

 
  

Appropriations: 
 

 
General Government: 

 
  

  City Council .............................................................................................  282,689  
  City Clerk .................................................................................................  165,947  
  City Attorney ...........................................................................................  352,287  
  City Manager ...........................................................................................  1,087,760  
  Information Technology ..........................................................................  1,218,513  
  Human Resources ....................................................................................  428,109  
  Finance Department  ................................................................................  1,548,991  
  Development Department ........................................................................  1,021,392  
  Non-Departmental ....................................................................................  541,500 
Courts:   
  Circuit Court ............................................................................................  111,116  
  General District Court ..............................................................................  138,666  
  Court Services ..........................................................................................  7,000  
  VJCCCA Grant ........................................................................................  157,515  
  Crater Detention Facility ..........................................................................  363,000  
  Regional Jail .............................................................................................  2,278,840 
Constitutional Offices:   
  Clerk of Circuit Court ..............................................................................  461,150  
  Commonwealth Attorney .........................................................................  630,745  
  Commissioner of Revenue .......................................................................  483,618  
  Sheriff ......................................................................................................  1,569,410  
  Treasurer ..................................................................................................            549,344  
Voter Registrar ...........................................................................................  230,269  
Police Department ......................................................................................  7,949,752 
Fire Department .........................................................................................  4,973,939 
Public Works Department ..........................................................................  5,160,034  
Health Department .....................................................................................  229,183  
Outside Agencies .......................................................................................  1,712,375  
Operating Transfers ...................................................................................  18,238,991  
Contingency/Litigation ..............................................................................  410,894  
   Total General Fund  ................................................................................  $52,303,029 
 
 

177



 3 

Social Services Fund-012:  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  From State Sources ................................................................................  $2,276,430  
  From Federal Sources ............................................................................  3,066,620 
  Transfer from General Fund-011 ...........................................................  982,243  
  Total Revenues ......................................................................................  $6,325,293  
 

 
  

Appropriations: 
 

  
  Administration .......................................................................................  1,244,815  
  Eligibility ...............................................................................................  5,080,478  
  Total Social Services Fund ....................................................................  

 
$6,325,293 

 
Children’s Services Act Fund-015:  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  From State Sources ................................................................................  $2,500,913  
  Transfer from General Fund-011 ...........................................................  608,227  
  Total Revenues ......................................................................................  $3,109,140  
 

 
  

Appropriations: 
 

  
  Administration .......................................................................................  157,121  
  Direct Services .......................................................................................  2,952,019  
  Total Children’s Services Act Fund .......................................................  $3,109,140 

 
Recreation Fund-035:  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  Fees & Charges ......................................................................................  $173,050  
  Transfer from General Fund-011 ...........................................................  1,715,560  
  Total Revenues.......................................................................................  $1,888,610   
   
Appropriations: 

 
  

  Recreation Center Div............................................................................  642,295  
  Community Div .....................................................................................  158,353  
  Athletics Div ..........................................................................................  137,733 
  Seniors Div.............................................................................................  147,079 
  Pool Div .................................................................................................  229,525 
  Parks Div ................................................................................................  553,203 
  Grants .....................................................................................................  20,422  
  Total Recreation Fund............................................................................  $1,888,610 

 
Marina Fund-038:  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  Rentals....................................................................................................  $25,000   
  Total Revenues.......................................................................................  

 
$25,000 

178



 4 

 
 

 
  

Appropriations: 
 

  
  Insurance ................................................................................................  

 
3,250  

  Operating Expenses ...............................................................................   21,750  
  Total Marina Fund .................................................................................  

 
$25,000 

 
 
Self-Insurance Fund-076:  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  Transfer from General Fund-011 ...........................................................   $500,000  
  Total Revenues.......................................................................................  $500,000  

  
Appropriations:   
  Property/Liability Insurance Premiums .................................................  500,000  
  Total Self Insurance Fund ......................................................................  

 
$500,000 

  
Anti-Litter Fund-053:  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  From State Sources ................................................................................  
 

$6,063  
  Total Revenues.......................................................................................  $6,063  

  
Appropriations: 

 
  

  Operating Expenses ...............................................................................  
 

6,063 
 

 
  Total Anti-Litter Fund............................................................................  

 
$6,063 

  
Cemetery Fund-003:  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  Interest Income.......................................................................................  
 

$8,000  
  Grave Site Sales .....................................................................................  39,000  
  Total Revenues.......................................................................................  

 
$47,000   

 
Appropriations: 

 
  

  Repairs ...................................................................................................  
 

14,000  
  Grass Cutting .........................................................................................  

 
27,000  

  Miscellaneous ........................................................................................  
 

6,000  
  Total Cemetery Fund .............................................................................  

 
$47,000 

 
 
School Operating Fund-014:  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  From State Sources ................................................................................  
 

33,713,123  
  From Federal Sources ............................................................................  

 
5,006,149  

  Other Revenues ......................................................................................  
 

502,953 

179



 5 

  Transfer from General Fund-011 ...........................................................  
 

12,242,921  
  Total Revenues.......................................................................................  

 
$51,465,146  

 
 

 
  

Appropriations: 
 

  
  Non-Categorical .....................................................................................  

 
51,465,146  

  Total School Operating Fund .................................................................  
 

$51,465,146 
 
School Textbook Fund-056:  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  From State Sources ................................................................................  
 

$500,000  
  Total Revenues.......................................................................................  

 
$500,000  

 
 

  
Appropriations: 

 
  

  Textbook Purchases ...............................................................................  
 

500,000  
  Total School Textbook Fund .................................................................  

 
$500,000 

 
School Cafeteria Fund-057:  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  From State Sources ................................................................................  
 

$62,007  
  From Federal Sources ............................................................................  

 
2,350,000  

  Other Revenues ......................................................................................  
 

1,219,844  
  Total Revenues.......................................................................................  

 
$3,631,851 

 
Appropriations:  
  Operating Expenses ...............................................................................  

 
3,631,8511 

 
 
  Total School Cafeteria Fund ..................................................................  

 
$3,631,8511 

  
School Bldg/Bus Replacement Fund-063:  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  Transfer from School Operating Fund-014............................................    
  Total Revenues.......................................................................................  

 
  

 
 

  
Appropriations: 

 
  

  Appropriations .......................................................................................    
  Total School Bldg/Bus Replacement Fund ............................................  

 
 

 
Solid Waste Fund-030:  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  Fees & Charges ......................................................................................  
 

$2,593,598  
  Total Revenues.......................................................................................  

 
$2,593,598  

 
 

  
Appropriations: 

 
  

  Curb-Side Pickup ...................................................................................  
 

2,409,521 

180



 6 

 
  Convenience Center ...............................................................................  

 
184,077  

  Total Solid Waste Fund .........................................................................  
 

$2,593,598 
 
Sewer Operations Fund-040:  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  Charges for Services ..............................................................................  
 

$9,828,340  
  Total Revenues.......................................................................................  

 
$9,828,340  

 
 

  
Appropriations: 

 
  

  Transfer to Sewer Maintenance Fund-041 .............................................  8,191,969  
  Transfer to Sewer Bond Fund-043 .........................................................  1,636,371  
  Total Sewer Operations Fund ................................................................  

 
$9,828,340 

  
Sewer Maintenance Fund-041:  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  Transfer from Sewer Operations Fund-040 ...........................................  
 

$8,191,969  
  Interest Income.......................................................................................  

 
225,000  

  Total Revenues.......................................................................................  
 

$8,416,969 
 

  
 
Appropriations: 

 
  

  Maintenance & Inspections....................................................................  1,503,233  
  City Pump Stations ................................................................................  4,883,736  
  Capital ....................................................................................................  2,030,000  
  Total Sewer Maintenance Fund .............................................................  $8,416,969 

 
Sewer Bond Fund-043:  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  Transfer from Sewer Operations Fund-040 ...........................................  
 

$1,636,371  
  Total Revenues.......................................................................................  

 
$1,636,371 

 
  
 
Appropriations: 

 
  

  Bond Principal .......................................................................................  550,000  
  Bond Interest ..........................................................................................  1,086,371  
  Total Sewer Bond Fund .........................................................................  $1,636,371 

 
 
Storm Water Fund #1-048:  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  Storm Water Fees ...................................................................................  
 

$856,500  
  From State Sources ................................................................................  

 
462,400 

 
 
  Total Revenues.......................................................................................  

 
 $1,318,900    

  

181



 7 

 
Appropriations: 

 
  

  Operating Expenses ...............................................................................  1,318,900  
  Total Storm Water Fund #1 ...................................................................  $1,318,900 

 
Storm Water Fund #2-049:  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  Storm Water Fees ...................................................................................  
 

$10,000  
  Total Revenues.......................................................................................  

 
$10,000 

 
  
 
Appropriations: 

 
  

  Operating Expenses ...............................................................................  10,000  
  Total Storm Water Fund #2 ...................................................................  $10,000 

 
Hopewell Water Renewal Fund-032:  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  Industrial User Charges..........................................................................  
 
$19,868,767  

  Total Revenues.......................................................................................  
 
$19,868,767  

 
 

  
Appropriations: 

 
  

  Operating Expenses ...............................................................................  
 

19,868,767  
  Total Hopewell Water Renewal Fund....................................................  $19,868,767 

 
Debt Service Fund-070:  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  Food Tax ................................................................................................  $2,300,000  
  Lodging Tax ...........................................................................................  

 
900,000  

  Fund 070 Revenue .................................................................................  
 

1,283,806  
  Transfer from General Fund-011 ...........................................................  

 
751,758  

  Total Revenues.......................................................................................  
 

$5,235,564  
 

 
  

Appropriations: 
 

  
  Debt Service ...........................................................................................  

 
5,235,564  

  Total Debt Service Fund ........................................................................  $5,235,564 
  
Capital Projects Fund-071:  

  
 

  
        
      

 
  

       
 

 
 

  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  From State Sources ................................................................................  
 

$1,000,000  
  Grant Fund .............................................................................................  

 
100,000    

  Transfer from General Fund-011 ...........................................................  
 

248,242  
  Transfer from General Fund I-295 .........................................................  

 
996,758  

  Total Revenues.......................................................................................  
 

$2,345,000   
  

182



 8 

 
Appropriations: 

 
  

  Capital Projects 
 

  

 
 
 

 
  IT-Fiber Connections-2nd Payment ........................................................  $165,000  
  Sheriff-2 Vehicles ..................................................................................  60,452  
  Engineering-VDOT Projects ..................................................................  

 
       2,014,548  

  Public Works-Americans with Disabilities Masterplan .........................  
 

25,000  
  Marina-Riverwalk Phase II Construction ..............................................  

 
80,000  

  Total Capital Projects Fund ...................................................................  
 

$2,345,000 
 
 
Economic Development Fund-075:  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  Transfer from General Fund-011 ...........................................................  
 

$38,440  
  Total Revenues.......................................................................................  

 
$38,440  

 
 

  
Appropriations: 

 
  

  Operating Expenses ...............................................................................  
 

38,440  
    Total Economic Development Fund ....................................................  

 
$38,440   

Healthy Families Fund-090: 
  

  
 

  
        

 
  

     
 

  
 

 
  

 
 

  
      

 
  

          
 

   
 

 
  
Estimated Revenues: 

 
  

  Donations ...............................................................................................  
 

$157,500  
  Transfer from General Fund-011 ...........................................................  

 
129,841  

  Total Revenues.......................................................................................  
 

$287,341   
 
Appropriations: 

 
  

 Operating Expenses ................................................................................  
 

287,341  
    Total Healthy Families Fund ...............................................................  

 
        $287,341 

 
Sec.  2 Constitutional Officers and respective Constitutional Office employees shall receive 

the position salary approved by the Virginia Compensation Board or granted by the 
Virginia General Assembly.  No Constitutional Officer shall be compensated for any 
vacation, sick, holiday, jury service, military leave, funeral leave or other paid time-
off granted to city employees. 

 
Sec.  3 Appropriations in addition to those contained in the general appropriation resolution 

may be made by the City Council only if there is available in the fund an 
unencumbered and unappropriated sum sufficient to meet such appropriation. 

 
Sec.  4 Except as set forth in Sections 7, 14, 16, 17, 18, and 19 the City Manager may, as 

provided herein, authorize the transfer of any unencumbered balance or portion 
thereof from one classification of expenditure to another within the same department 
or appropriation function/category.  The City Manager may transfer up to $25,000 
from the unencumbered balance of the appropriation of one appropriation 

183



 9 

function/category to another appropriation function/category.  No more than one 
transfer may be made for the same item causing the need for a transfer. 

 
Sec.  5 The City Manager may increase appropriations for the following items of non-

budgetary revenue that may occur during the fiscal year: 
a. Insurance recoveries received for damage to City vehicles or other property for 

which City funds have been expended to make repairs. 
b. Refunds or reimbursements made to the City for which the City has expended 

funds directly related to that refund or reimbursement. 
c. Any revenue source not to exceed $25,000. 
 

Sec.  6 All outstanding encumbrances, both operating and capital, at June 30, 2019 shall be 
re-appropriated to the 2019-20 fiscal year to the same department and account for 
which they are encumbered in the previous year.  

 
Sec.  7 At the close of the fiscal year, all unencumbered appropriations lapse for budget items 

other than Capital Projects, reserves, grants, and donations restricted to specific 
purposes. 

             
Sec.  8 Appropriations for capital projects will not lapse at the end of the fiscal year but shall 

remain appropriations until the completion of the projects or until the City Council, 
by appropriate ordinance or resolution, changes or eliminates the appropriation.  The 
City Manager may approve necessary accounting transfers between capital funds to 
enable the capital projects to be accounted for in the correct manner.  Upon 
completion of a capital project, staff is authorized to close out the projects and 
transfer to the funding source any remaining balances.  This section applies to all 
existing appropriations for Capital Projects at June 30, 2019 and appropriations in the 
2019-20 budget year.  The City Manager may approve construction change orders to 
contracts up to an increase of $25,000 and approve all change orders for reductions to 
contracts. 

 
Sec.  9 The City Manager may authorize the transfer of Sewer Services Capital Projects 

funds that are 20% or up to $100,000 of the original project cost, whichever is less, 
from any Sewer Services Capital Project to any other Sewer Services Capital Project 
or to the original funding source.  Should the actual contract price for a project be 
significantly (over $100,000) less than the appropriation, the City Manager may 
approve transfer of excess funds to the funding source prior to completion of the 
project. 

 
Sec. 10 The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to apply for and accept all city 

eligible grants which require no local match money to receive without further City 
Council action. 

 
  City Manager is further authorized to apply for and accept eligible grants of $50,000 

or less and with up to fifty (50) percent or less of the total dollar grant amount match 

184



 10 

requirement.  City Manager is authorized to use current budget appropriated funds 
towards any local match required. Any grant application/award greater than $50,000 
must be approved by Council prior to the city administration making application. 

 
  The City Manager is hereby authorized to sign and execute all necessary documents 

for the acceptance of any city grant approved by Council. 
 
Sec. 11 City Council approval of any grant of funds to the City constitutes the appropriation 

of both the revenue to be received from the grant and the city's expenditure required 
by the terms of the grant, if any.  The appropriation of grant funds will not lapse at the 
end of the fiscal year, but shall remain appropriated until completion of the project or 
until Council, by appropriate resolution, changes or eliminates the appropriation.   

 
  The City Manager may reduce any grant appropriation to the level approved by the 

granting agency during the fiscal year.  The City Manager may approve necessary 
accounting transfers between accounts to enable the grant to be accounted for in the 
correct manner.  Upon completion of a grant project, staff is authorized to close out 
the grant and transfer back to the funding source any unspent remaining balances.  
This applies to appropriations for grants outstanding at June 30, 2019 and 
appropriations in the 2019-20s budget year. 

 
Sec. 12 The City Manager may appropriate both revenue and expenditure for donations made 

by citizens or citizen groups in support of city programs.  Any remaining 
unencumbered balance of a restricted donation at the end of the fiscal year will be re-
appropriated into the subsequent fiscal year for the same purpose. 

 
Sec. 13 The City Manager may reduce revenue and expenditure appropriations related to 

programs funded all or in part by the Commonwealth of Virginia and/or the federal 
government to the level approved by the responsible state or federal agency. 

 
Sec. 14 The Director of Finance City Manager is authorized to make transfers to the various 

funds for which there are transfers budgeted.  The Director of Finance City Manager 
shall transfer funds only as needed up to amounts budgeted, or in accordance with 
any existing bond resolutions that specify the manner in which transfers are to be 
made. 

 
Sec. 15 The City Treasurer may advance monies to and from the various funds of the City to 

allow maximum cash flow efficiency.  The advances must not violate city bond 
covenants or other legal restrictions that would prohibit an advance. 

 
Sec. 16 The City Manager is authorized to make expenditures from Trust & Agency Funds 

for the specified reasons for which the funds were established. In no case shall the 
expenditure exceed the available balance in the fund. 

 
Sec. 17 The City Manager may appropriate revenues and increase expenditures for funds 

received by the City from asset forfeitures for operating expenditures directly related 

185



 11 

to drug enforcement.  This applies to funds currently on-hand at June 30, 2019, and 
all funds received in the 2019-20 budget year, shall not lapse but be carried forward 
into the next fiscal year. 

 
Sec. 18 After completion of all necessary audit transactions for the General Fund, the City 

Manager may increase appropriations or authorize transfers of existing appropriation 
at June 30 as follows: 
a. Subsequent to all audit adjustments and the ending general fund balance is 

maintained at maximum of 10% of general fund expenditures, transfer all 
available current year operation funds to the unassigned fund balance of the 
Capital Projects Fund for future capital projects. 

b. At year-end, any budgeted Fire Department appropriations in excess of actual 
expenditures for the year shall be transferred to a reserve account for future fire 
equipment purchases. This applies to funds on-hand at June 30, 2019, and all 
funds received in the 2019-20 budget year. 

 
Sec. 19 The City Manager is authorized to reallocate funding sources for Capital Projects, 

arbitrage rebates/penalties, and debt services payments and to appropriate bond 
interest earning to minimize arbitrage rebates/penalties.  This authority would include 
the appropriation of transfers among funds to accomplish such reallocation.  Budgets 
for specific Capital Projects will not be increased beyond the level authorized by 
sections 4 and 5.This applies to funds currently on-hand in at June 30, 2019 and all 
funds received in the FY 2019-20 budget year. 

 
Sec. 20 The City Manager is authorized to transfer among appropriation categories any 

amount of funds associated with implementation of the VJCCCA Grant to record 
transactions.  

 
Sec. 21 The City Manager is authorized to transfer among appropriation categories any 

amount of monies associated with implementation of the Children’s Services Act for 
at-risk youth and families, but the local city match appropriation shall be reduced to 
the amount required to match the original state approved budget.  Any supplemental 
budget request for funding shall be presented to Council for appropriation. 

 
Sec. 22 The City Manager is authorized to disburse state Four-For-Life Program funding to 

the Hopewell Emergency Crew for authorized expenditures or to disburse funds 
between the Hopewell Emergency Crew and the Hopewell Bureau of Fire, all in the 
best interest of providing emergency services to Hopewell.  Amount of funds 
authorized to be disbursed shall not exceed the state funding award. 

 
Sec. 23 The City Manager is authorized, upon approval of Council, to transfer among 

appropriation categories any amount of monies associated with implementation of the 
Department of Social Services budget for services, but the local city match 
appropriation shall be reduced to the amount required to match the original state 
approved budget.  Any supplemental budget request for funding shall be presented to 
city council for appropriation. 

186



 12 

 
Sec. 24 Effective upon adoption of this resolution, the City Manager is authorized to approve 

transfers within operating funds as long as total net spending is not exceeded, and all 
transfer activity is to be reported to Council on a monthly basis.  

  The City Manager is authorized, only upon the approval of Council, to transfer 
between funds should fiscal conditions or circumstances prescribe that the transfer is 
required. The transfer amount must not result in a deficit balance in the Fund that the 
transfer is being made from.  

 
Sec. 25 The City Manager is hereby authorized, upon approval of Council, to reassign or 

reallocate any full-time authorized position within the authorized fund complement of 
positions to a lower or higher grade after the City Classification and Compensation 
Study Committee has approved the job evaluation and made its recommendation to 
the City Manager. This authority is not to be construed as giving the City Manager 
authority to create or increase the authorized full-time City work force. Council 
reserves to itself the authority to increase or decrease the authorized full-time 
employee positions. 

  
Sec. 26 Effective July 1, 2019, the following will be the City share of health care cost from 

The Local Choice (Anthem):   
Active Employee Health Insurance (TLC) Rates for 19-20 

High Deductible Health Plan 
(HDHP) with HSA* 

Employee 
Share (per 

pay) 

Employee 
Share (per 

month) 

City Share 
(per month) 

Total Premium 
(per month) 

Employee Only $35.63  $71.27  $391.73  $463.00  
Employee + Spouse $100.95  $201.89  $655.11  $857.00  
Employee + Child $83.40  $166.80  $690.20  $857.00  

Employee + Children $83.46  $166.93  $1,083.07  $1,250.00  
Employee + Family $166.80  $333.59  $916.41  $1,250.00  

Key Advantage 250 Employee 
Share 

Employee 
Share City Share Total Premium 

Employee Only $50.50  $101.00  $533.00  $634.00  
Employee + Spouse $151.31  $302.62  $870.38  $1,173.00  
Employee + Child $121.04  $242.08  $930.92  $1,173.00  

Employee + Children $120.98  $241.95  $1,470.05  $1,712.00  
Employee + Family $256.11  $512.22  $1,199.78  $1,712.00  

Key Advantage Expanded Employee 
Share 

Employee 
Share City Share Total Premium 

Employee Only $78.70  $157.40  $527.60  $685.00  
Employee + Spouse $204.31  $408.62  $858.38  $1,267.00  
Employee + Child $174.04  $348.08  $918.92  $1,267.00  

Employee + Children $197.98  $395.95  $1,454.05  $1,850.00  

187



 13 

Employee + Family $333.11  $666.22  $1,183.78  $1,850.00  
Retirees: 
 

Non-Medicare/Early Retiree Health Insurance (TLC) Rates for 19-20 
20+ Years of Service (City Pays 30% of the total premium) 
Plan Retiree Share City Share Total Premium 
TLC Key Advantage Expanded $479.50 $205.50 $685.00 
TLC Key Advantage 250 $443.80 $190.20 $634.00 
TLC HDHP $324.10 $138.90 $463.00 

    15-19 Years of Service (City Pays 20% of the total premium) 
Plan Retiree Share City Share Total Premium 
TLC Key Advantage Expanded $548.00 $137.00 $685.00 
TLC Key Advantage 250 $507.20 $126.80 $634.00 
TLC HDHP $370.40 $92.60 $463.00 

 
Retirees hired before 7/1/03 retiring after 1/1/04: 
  Council authorizes and directs a policy change, effective July 1, 2017, that the City 

will continue to pay health insurance for the three spouses currently under the age of 
65 until those spouses turn 65.  The City will then cease payment of their health 
insurance. Also effective July 1, 2017, the City will continue to pay for the health 
care for the spouses of retirees until July 2018. Effective July 1, 2018, the City will 
pay 50% of the spousal coverage until June 30, 2019. Council authorizes and directs 
that effective July 1, 2019; the City will no longer pay any portion of health insurance 
costs for the spouses of any retirees.  

 
  Any city retiree eligible for Virginia Retirement System health insurance credit shall 

have the city health insurance contribution reduced by a dollar amount equal to the 
VRS eligible health insurance credit amount. The VRS health insurance credit shall 
be calculated by an amount equal to $1.50, or current rate approved by VRS, times 
the years of service with a maximum reduction amount of $45.00 dollars, or the 
maximum amount authorized by VRS. 

 
  City Manager is authorized and directed to terminate the health insurance coverage 

for any retiree who fails to pay the city their respective share of the health insurance 
premium and who is sixty (60) days delinquent on premium payments.  Any retiree 
who has their insurance coverage terminated for failure to pay their respective share 
of premium shall not be eligible for re-enrollment until the delinquent premiums are 
paid to the city and only at the next open enrollment period. 

 
Sec. 27 Council authorizes and directs that the City shall only pay such amount equal to the 

City contribution share of the premium cost as authorized in Sec. 26, above, and any 
additional insurance coverage costs selected by employee shall be paid by employee 
by payroll deduction in the month prior to the premium due date. 

 

188



 14 

  For any employee electing to enroll in the HSA plan of record, the city shall 
contribute the sum of $1,400.00 for single coverage and $2,700.00 for family 
coverage, to be paid monthly into employee HSA account; to include employee and 
child or employee and spouse, paid the second pay period of each month on the basis 
of 24 pays per year.  If employee is hired before 15th of month credit for that month 
is given, after 15th of month credit and contribution payments shall begin the 
following month, to the employee HSA established at the city bank of record for HSA 
accounts.   

 
Sec. 28 City Council authorizes and directs the employee contribution share (5%) of VRS 

pension contribution rate to be paid by all employees as of July 1, 2019 Employee 
share of VRS pension contribution shall be deducted on a bi-weekly basis on the 
assumption of 24 pays per year.  Contribution will be effective for the month in which 
it is deducted.  Prior to the 15th of the month, credit shall be given for the month and 
the monthly employee contribution shall be deducted. After the 15th of the month 
VRS deduction and credit shall begin 1st day the following month.  Elected 
Constitutional Officers shall pay the VRS 5% employee contribution on the same 
basis as city employee. 

 
Sec. 29 City Council authorizes the VRS retirement multiplier for Hopewell Public Safety 

positions to change from 1.7% to 1.85%. 
 
 
 

--oo0oo-- 
 
 

I, Ronnieye L Arrington, City Clerk of the City of Hopewell, Virginia, do certify that the 
foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution of the City of Hopewell duly adopted on the 
28th day of May, 2019. 
 
 Given under my hand and the Corporate Seal of the City of Hopewell, Virginia, this 7th 
day of June, 2019. 
 
 
     /s/ Ronnieye L Arrington 
     Ronnieye L Arrington 
     City Clerk 
 
S E A L 
 

189



 

 

 

 

 

 

R-3 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 
SUMMARY: 

Y N       Y N  

□ □ Councilor Debbie Randolph, Ward #1    □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 

□ □ Councilor John B. Partin, Ward #3    □ □ Vice Mayor Patience Bennett, Ward #7 

□ □ Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

 

       

  

 

CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

 

 

Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 

Culture & Recreation  

Economic Development 

Education 

Housing 

Safe & Healthy Environment  

None (Does not apply) 

 

Order of Business: 

  Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing          

Presentation-Boards/Commissions  

Unfinished Business            

Citizen/Councilor Request      

Regular Business 

Reports of Council Committees  
 

 

Action: 

Approve and File  

Take Appropriate Action  

Receive & File (no motion required) 

Approve Ordinance 1
st
 Reading 

Approve Ordinance 2
nd

 Reading 

  Set a Public Hearing       

Approve on Emergency Measure  

 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:     

Request to Appropriate Capital Improvement Funds and Receipt of Grant for King’s Court Park 

ISSUE:  The Hopewell Recreation and Parks Department was notified on Monday, June 3, 2019, 

that it had received a $30,000 grant in support of the King’s Court Park renovation project.  The 

grant is being provided by the National Recreation and Park Association and Disney in an effort 

to create or improve play spaces across the country which provides opportunities for increased 

physical activity for kids and families.  The department requested $80,000 in capital 

improvement funds to complete the project in fiscal year 2020.  The project is unfunded at this 

time.  At minimum, the grant requires a 1:1 ratio in matching funds.  To complete the renovation 

project as designed, $50,000 is required in capital funding.   

RECOMMENDATION:  City staff recommends the appropriation of $50,000 in capital 

improvement funds to meet the matching requirements and to complete the project as designed 

for King’s Court Park.     

TIMING: Action is requested at the June 11, 2019, meeting of Hopewell City Council. 

 

BACKGROUND:  King’s Court Park was established over 30 years ago and features aging 

playground equipment that does not meet current safety standards.  The project will include a 

complete replacement of the playground equipment in additional to new picnic pavilions, 

drainage improvements, landscaping, signage, and improvements to accessibility via paved 

walking trails and handicap parking.    

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 

 Grant Offer Letter 

190



 

 

 
SUMMARY: 

Y N       Y N  

□ □ Councilor Debbie Randolph, Ward #1    □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 

□ □ Councilor John B. Partin, Ward #3    □ □ Vice Mayor Patience Bennett, Ward #7 

□ □ Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

 

       

  

STAFF:    

Aaron Reidmiller, Director of Recreation and Parks 

    

191



From: PlayspacesRFA <PlayspacesRFA@nrpa.org>  

Date: June 3, 2019 at 3:20:19 PM EDT  

To: "tgates@hopewellva.gov" <tgates@hopewellva.gov>  

Subject: NRPA and Disney Play Spaces Grant Notice 

Dear Thomas -  

  

Congratulations!  Thank you for applying for a 2019 Play Spaces grant from the  

National Recreation and Park Association (NRPA) in partnership with The Walt  

Disney Company. I am pleased to inform you that your agency has been selected  

to receive grant funding in support of your efforts to provide innovative and  

inclusive projects that increase physical activity for children and their  

families.  We are excited to work with you this year as you implement your  

project. 

  

Next Steps: 

  

* Confirm acceptance of grant via email by Wednesday, June 5, 2019. 

* Read through, sign and return the attached Memorandum of  

Understanding containing your specific grant information. 

* Upload a copy of your W9 to https://nrpa.leapfile.net . 

* We have a press release and marketing tool kit that will be sent  

shortly.   Please do not make a public announcement about this grant  

award until you have received the toolkit and the national press release  

has been issued.  This will allow confirmation of all notifications to take  

place before announcing the grantees.   

* Please let us know if there are additional organization contacts that  

should be added to our distribution list for future communications. 

  

  

Grantee Kick-Off:   

* Mark your calendar for a mandatory welcome call on Wednesday, June  

19, from 3 p.m. – 4 p.m. EST.  All agencies are required to have at least  

one representative on this call as important grant information will be  

shared. (Call-in information to be sent). 

  

If you have any questions about these immediate action items, please reach out.  

Again, as soon as we have a signed copy of your MOU and W-9 we can process  

your grant payment. 

  

We are looking forward to working with you! 

  

Take care, 

Jennifer 

  

192



  

Jennifer Stromberg 

Program Manager 

193



 

 

 

 

R-4 
 

 



194



195



196



197



198



 
REPORTS OF THE 

CITY COUNCIL 
• COMMITTEES 

• INDIVIDUAL REQUEST 
• ANY OTHER COUNCILOR 



 

IR-1 
 



 

IR-2 
 



 

ADJOURN 

 
 


	Top
	PH-1 School Board public hearing
	22.1-29.1 public hearing before appointment of school board.pdf
	22.1-29 qualification of members.pdf
	Public hearing for school board meeting - June 2019.docx
	Council Action Form - School Board appointee.docx

	R-1 CDBG funding re-appropriation from the Development Code Capital Account
	HUD and City letters regarding repayment.pdf
	6 11 2019 CDBG Reappropriation.docx
	Reappropriation of CDBG Funds CC 6 11 2019.pptx

	IR-1 Request that boards, commissions, committees present annual reports to Council
	IR-2 Local historic market program
	Bottom

